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OBJECTIVE 1 – within 7 hours

a. review last years course by reading, understanding and translating the story below

b. working on pronunciation via audio CD of the text below

c. reviewing grammar rules of the present simple, present continuous, past simple, and question forms

d. translate the song below.

OBJECTIVE “1A”

My life in Abruzzo
(1)The whole of Abruzzo is full or tradition, and when you visit Abruzzo, its beauty hits you. Pretty villages, quiet countryside and great food.(2) There isn’t much noise in the cities compared to other regions of Italy where you can find the main tourist locations. You can breathe the clean air. Eat fresh food. The weather in Abruzzo is like the weather in New York. The climate is mild, and reaches 5 degrees in the winter and 35 degrees in the summer. (3) There are a lot of rumours about Abruzzo, but the locals are well behaved, and like to look for new people in their village to find out more about the world and share stories. People are always telling me, the importance of keeping traditions. Some festivals run over a whole weekend and bank holidays and both the young and old seem to have the time of their lives together.

(4) I can testify that the Abruzzi are not shy people and they will argue over everything, but in good spirit, as they will happily give you a hug and a kiss at the end (I have to admit they are clever people!). You must learn the language too, you cannot depend on English for survival and that is pretty important to remember. When I say something in Italian, the trick is, I speak with confidence. (5) The locals are awkward around foreigners, they acknowledge and actually feel complemented over your efforts to speak the language. I have realised that they can often speak English but don’t like to make mistakes and do not want to be criticized. They are, at the end, very close to their family and relations. The Abruzzi unfortunately come across as rather cruel to their pets. Foreigners are concerned that Abruzzi are allowed to deal with animals in this way, but they will explain that animals are animals and people are people and they mainly can’t see anything wrong. That is a shame. 

(6) Abruzzi like to keep in shape. They are careful about their weight, and weigh themselves regularly, on average, once a week. To get into shape they like sport and eat well. Sport is the only way to loose weight. They eat almost all meats, like beef and ham even if too much meat is bad for you. You can choose between cooked and raw ham for example. They like salads, lentils, and there is no difference between what the males and the females eat. 

(7) Abruzzo is not an expensive place to go for a trip, holiday or honeymoon. I often like to travel in the mountains or have an afternoon snack at the beach. Great ways to spend your free time. I like reading on the beach while watching the boats sail past, and listen to the waves. I remember once, seeing a man tip-over his boat while he was tying a knot to come into the peer. In the mountains on the other hand, there is a lot of wild life, like wolves, bears, eagles and snakes. It is difficult to get angry about anything when you live here. Is there anything else you could possibly want out of life?

(8) Last year, I decided to buy a house. I found a very big house in a very quiet town at the end of a country road. It is at the edge of town. There is an excellent restaurant near by, but, above all, there is a beautiful view of the green valleys and no office blocks! At the end of the valley you can see the lighthouse at Vasto. 

(9) I recognised that there was a lot of work to do on the house but the agent who guided me was very honest and experienced. He knows lots of builders, electricians and plumbers who can help me and he can manage them until I move to Abruzzo. I am still young, I am 38 years old. (10)The house is full of character. The path is made of gravel leading to an old front door. The structure is sound, but the roof has a hole in it and is therefore leaking. It has a kitchen and lounge on the ground floor with two bedrooms and bathroom on the first floor. There are lights in every room. (11) There are internal stairs to get to the first floor but you need to use a ladder to reach the roof. The tiles on the roof and around the house are all original. There is a huge fireplace, bread oven and chimney. Having a fireplace will save on my fuel bill. (12) The previous family left some furniture. There was a wardrobe, wooden table, and a cupboard built into the kitchen wall. There is even a point for the washing machine and microwave. 

Before I purchased the house, I waited for the agent to supply drawings of all the rooms, and the layout of the house. (13) He explained the legal issues and the law of contract for hours and about the rights of way over the land. I thought the whole process would take years, and I was really looking forward to completion. However, after two months we were allowed to do the final signing. I was very scared so I hired a lawyer which was unnecessary as the Notary was very thorough. At the end, we all shook hands and I was finally an owner of a house in Italy. (14)I want to move over, but I haven’t planned anything yet. I wish there was a single currency to make the transfer easier. 

In the States I have a company, I employ 5 people. I make a good living so I can’t complain. They say I am a good employer, who knows if they mean it? I think they are excellent employees, well educated, all with degrees and very nice people. I work a lot in the criminal courts, so I do not understand civil law, like contract and tort. Wish me luck!
Vocabulary
	Vocabulary


	Translate


	Vocabulary


	Translate



	Keep

hit

Anything else?

Whole

Hole

Waves

Tip – over

Confident

Rumour

Noise

Necessary

Pretty

Full

To tell (me)

To say (to)

Edge

Compared to

Light house

Fuel

Take

Put

I must learn (to)

Scared

Pull

Over a whole weekend

I can’t see anything

Final signing

Knots

Sails

Hug

Degrees

Stroke

To get angry

Cheek

Lawyer

Allow

Above all

Watches

Employees

employer

To employ

Criminal courts

Civil courts

The law of Tort

The law of Contract

Skull and crossbones

Handshake

Acknowledge

Behaviour

Actually

Awkward

Find out

Filing

Manage

To look for

I am playing football

Are you going to school

Inherited

Mean

Young

Complained

Moved

Meanness

Injured

explain

Unfortunately

Argument

Finally

Jewellery

Clever

Millions

Allowed

Concern

Eat Ate Eaten

Wait

Meat

Beef

Salad

For an afternoon snack

Raw

Cooked

It is the only way to loose weight

Shape

To get into shape

The house is very big

The street is very noisy

I like sailing a lot.

I read a lot of books

On Monday

Much

Many

A lot

A few

A little

Purchase

Buy

Average

Male

Female
	
	I am drawing

To draw

Front door

Roof

Roof tiles

Chimney

Path

Right of way

Bank holiday

I haven’t planned anything yet

I have planned nothing, yet

I plan nothing, I live spontaneously.

I planned nothing, but the meeting still went well.

Spoon

Knife

Fork

Cup

Saucer

Wooden table

Napkin

Wallet

Purse

Country road

Office block

Motorway

Highway

Countryside

Coach

Steam train

Wardrobe

Cupboard

Oven

Washing machine

Microwave

Spotlight

Light bulb

Picture

Wolf

Bear

Eagle

Snake

Ladder

Stairs

Worker

Stars and stripes

Messy hair

Wink

Beard

Moustache

Whisper

There is an excellent restaurant at Naples

I like to go to Naples often

That is a shame.

Recognise

Almost

…even if…

Honeymoon

Guide

…at the end…

To make mistakes

They were too weak

To criticise

They cannot criticise them too much.

A very expensive trip

Realise

To have to

To need

Choice

Single currency

Shy

Behaviour

Come across

Explain

Deal with

Process

Japan

Experienced

Rather

hours

Thought

Until

False

Growing

To queue up

To have the time of your life

pets

Hail

Testify

Could

Admit

Breathe

Relations

Lentils

Mainly

Weight

To weigh

Survival
	


Questions

WHAT

WHICH

WHERE

WHEN 

WHO (WHOSE)

WHY

HOW

	Example questions

What was the weather like?

When did you purchase your PC?

How much time do you spend on the internet on average?

What do you do for a living?

Is your PC Internet ready?

Can I buy some porridge? 

Can you repeat that, please?

Where did you have lunch today?

Where are you living at the moment?

Where do you live?

How do you spend your free time?

Are you looking forward to the course?
	Translate





OBJECTIVE “1B”

Pronunciation

	I won’t

I will not

I want (to)

Thoughts

Foods

Busy

Business

Acknowledge

Behaviour

Actually

Awkward

Answer

England

A live concert

To live

Life

Heat

It

Eat

hit
	Inherited

Mean

Young

Read

Red

Complained

Moved

Meanness

Injured

33

explain

Unfortunately

Argument

Finally

Fruit

Ate

Eight

Hate

Tuesday

Thursday
	Jewellery

Clever

Millions

Allowed

Concern

Shy

Behaviour

Explain

Deal with

Process

Japan

Experienced

Rather

Walk

Work

Angry

hungry

Thought

home

To leave


OBJECTIVE “1C”

Grammar rules

Present Simple

	Girl
	So, Which beach do you normally go to?

	Boy
	I like going to the main beaches where there are all the cafés, showers and facilities. What about you?

	Girl
	Oh! I am the same. 

	Boy
	The only problem is the crowds. In July and August. It gets so full.

	Girl
	Yes but at least you get to meet new people. 

	Boy
	That’s true. And I do like to play volleyball with friends. Do you play any sports?

	Girl
	I love tennis, but it’s a bit difficult to play tennis on the beach. I also like going for walks and having a swim.

	Boy
	Really! Me too. Do you want something from the café?

	Girl
	Yes, can I have an espresso and a croissant.

	Boy
	Do you want any milk and sugar in the espresso?

	Girl
	Just a drop of milk, thanks.

	Boy
	What do you do? Do you study, or work?

	Girl
	I’m a student. I’m studying engineering. Strange but true

	Boy
	Great. Are there many women who study engineering.

	Girl
	The subject is still male dominated, but there are a few of us.

	Boy
	Do you like it?

	Girl
	Yes, it’s really interesting. I also feel there is more chance of getting a job at the end of the course.

	Boy
	Right. I work in one of the local factories. 

	Girl
	That’s interesting. Why aren’t you at work today, then?

	Boy
	I am on holiday for two weeks. 

	Girl
	It’s late. I need to go. It was nice to meet you.

	Boy
	Yes. It was nice to meet you too. See you.


To Do
	Local girl
	What do you want to drink?

	Tourist boy
	Can I have a beer, please?

	Local girl
	What type of beer? England has got many types of beer.

	Tourist boy
	I don’t know really. What types are there?

	Local girl
	Well...There is lager. It is lighter and sweeter than other beers.

	Tourist boy
	Do you normally drink lager?

	Local girl
	No, I don’t. I normally drink bitter.

	Tourist boy
	What’s bitter?

	Local girl
	Bitter is a darker beer, a littler heavier than lager and less fizzy. 

	Tourist boy
	Sounds nice. Can I have one of those then?

	Local girl
	Yes of course you can. But don’t forget there is also ale or stout.

	Tourist boy
	What is ale and stout?

	Local girl
	Well, you ask some questions now. They are much heavier and even less fizzy than bitter. They are quite creamy. A bit like Guinness ... well Guinness is a brand of stout for example.

	Tourist boy
	I don’t know what to have now. 

	Local girl
	Why don’t you try a pint of bitter?

	Tourist boy
	Sounds good. 


That was so much fun we can do it again! This time let’s do a survey on eating habits.

	Question
	Answer

	What eat breakfast
	

	Different on Weekend
	

	Which biggest meal
	

	What you eat
	

	Eat fruit –  how much day / week
	

	Vegetables – how much
	

	Foreign foods 
	

	Where shopping
	

	Prefer big / small shop
	

	Weekly bill
	

	Favorite treat
	

	When away, like local food
	

	Favorite meal away
	

	Favorite local meal
	

	What good with local cuisine
	

	Eat out a lot
	

	Type of place
	

	Say bye 
	


	FOOD
	Suggested question

	What eat breakfast
	What do you normally eat for breakfast?

	Different on Weekend
	Does that differ on the Weekend

	Which biggest meal
	Which is your biggest meal of the day

	What you eat
	What do you normally eat for this meal?

	Eat fruit –  how much day / week
	How much fruit do you normally eat every day?

	Vegetables – how much
	What about vegetables?

	Foreign foods 
	Do you like foreign foods?

	Where shopping
	Where do you normally go shopping?

	Prefer big / small shop
	Do you prefer bigger or smaller shops?

	Weekly bill
	How much do you normally spend a week on food?

	Favorite treat
	What is your favorite treat?

	When away, like local food
	When you are away from home, do you enjoy the local food?

	Favorite meal away
	What is your favorite meal when away from home?

	Favorite local meal
	What is your favorite local meal?

	What good with local cuisine
	What do you like about your local cuisine?

	Eat out a lot
	Do you eat out a lot?

	Type of place
	What type of place do you normally go to?

	Say bye 
	Thanks very much and enjoy your day!


The Past Simple
To create the Past Simple Question change the auxiliary from the present to the past.

The past of the verb TO BE (am/ is/ are) is was/ were:

I/ he/ she/ it 


WAS

We/ you/ they

WERE

Are you late? / BECOMES / Were you late yesterday?

The past of the verb CAN is Could (for all subjects):
Can you swim? / BECOMES / Could you swim last year?

The past of the verb TO DO (Do / Does) is Did (for all subjects):
Do you drive to work / BECOMES / Did you drive to work last year?

The Past of the verb TO HAVE (have/ has)is Had BUT we cannot use HAD as an auxiliary;

Have you got a car? / DOES NOT BECOME / Had you got a car last year?

We need to use the “DO” version.

Do you have a car? / BECOMES / Did you have a car last year?

Let’s look at some more examples;

What did you do yesterday evening?

Where were you this morning?

Why couldn’t he go to the meeting?

Did he have the report with him on the plane?

Where did you go for your last trip?

Negations

To create the Past Simple Negations change the auxiliary from the present to the past.

The past of the verb TO BE (am/ is/ are) is was/ were:

I/ he/ she/ it 

WAS

We/ you/ they
WERE

I am not late! / BECOMES / I was not late yesterday

The past of the verb CAN is Could (for all subjects):
I can’t swim. / BECOMES / I could not swim last year?

The past of the verb TO DO (Do / Does) is Did (for all subjects):
I do not drive to work / BECOMES / I did not drive to work last year
The Past of the verb TO HAVE (have/ has)is Had BUT we cannot use HAD as an auxiliary;

I have not got a car / DOES NOT BECOME / I had not got a car last year

We need to use the “DO” version.

I do not have a car / BECOMES / I did not have a car last year

Let’s look at some more examples;

I didn’t do anything yesterday evening

I wasn’t in my office this morning

I couldn’t go to the meeting last week

He did not have the report with him on the plane

I didn’t go to the mountains yesterday.


Practice 


Gretna Scene

EVEN for Gretna Green, this was a strange story. Marcus Lee-Curtis, 21, and Marie Schearer, 16, weren’t runaways. The bridegroom’s mother was at the wedding and so were twenty other guests. But the bride’s parents weren’t there. In fact, they didn’t know anything about the wedding until the following week, and then Mrs Schearer was so angry that she attacked Marcus’ mother.

Marie first met Marcus when she was only 13. They fell in love and when Marie was 16, she left home and lived with Marcus at his grandmother’s house. They decided to get married. But Marie was only 16 and her parents didn’t approve, so they went to Gretna Green.

A week later, Marie’s mother opened the local newspaper and saw a photograph of the bride and groom. She wasn’t happy and she blamed Marcus mother. She waited outside the Lee-Curtis’ house, and when Mrs Lee-Curtis came out, Mrs Schearer stopped her. She shouted at her and pulled her hair. When Marcus tried to help his mother, Mrs Schearer hit him in the stomach. Then she drove her car at Mrs Lee- Curtis and pushed her into a garden. In court to day Mrs Schearer apologised. When. they came out of court Marie smiled and said: “I hope that in time we can all get together.’

Write the questions, using this information. 

1. When / Marie/ meet / Marcus

2. When / she / leave / home

3. Where / the wedding

4. Why / you / not there

5. How / you / find out / about it

6. How / you / feel

7. What / you / do

8. Anyone / try / to stop you

PRESENT SIMPLE

Examples; Do you like football?, Yes I like football or No I don’t like football.
Describe states
Regular events 
Thoughts / opinions 
PRESENT CONTINUOUS

What are you doing? I am studying, I am not doing anything
Describe a temporary state 
To say what is happening at the moment
Future arrangements 
Some verbs cannot be used in the continuous form. For example, you cannot say “I am knowing”. You can only say I KNOW (the simple tense). Here is a list of verbs which are not normally used in the continuous tense (but there are exceptions):

WANT
LIKE
BELONG
KNOW
SUPPOSE 

REMEMBER 
NEED
LOVE
SEE 
REALISE

MEAN
FORGET
PREFER
HATE
HEAR


BELIEVE
UNDERSTAND
SEEM


HAVE 
(when the meaning is possess)

THINK
(when the meaning is believe)

· Do you LIKE London (not “are you liking”)

· He doesn’t UNDERSTAND (not “HE ISN’T UNDERSTANDING”)

· These shoes BELONG to me. (not “are belonging”)

· What do you THINK Tom will do? (=What do you believe he will do?) but: What are you THINKING about? (=What is going on in your mind?)

OBJECTIVE “1D”

Simply Red "It's Only Love"

It's only love

It's only love

Don't be afraid to touch me babe

Girl let's be real

There's nothing wrong

With the way we're carrying on

So enjoy and live

Because

It's only love doing it's thing baby

It's only love that you're feeling

It's only love doing it's thing baby

It's only love that you're giving

I wanna stay with you night and day

Until the end of time

It's OK when you lay

Lay your body next to mine

Because

It's only love doing it's thing baby

It's only love that you're feeling

It's only love doing it's thing baby

It's only love that you're giving 

U2 - I still haveb’t found what I’m looking for

I have climbed the highest mountains

I have run through the fields

Only to be with you

Only to be with you.

I have run, I have crawled

I have scaled these city walls

These city walls

Only to be with you.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

I have kissed honey lips

Felt the healing in her finger tips

It burned like fire

(I was) burning inside her.

I have spoke with the tongue of angels

I have held the hand of a devil

It was warm in the night

I was cold as a stone.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

I believe in the Kingdom Come

Then all the colours will bleed into one

Bleed into one.

But yes, I'm still running.

You broke the bonds

And you loosed the chains

Carried the cross of my shame

Oh my shame, you know I believe it.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for.

But I still haven't found

What I'm looking for. 
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Pronunciation


For verbs that end in a voiceless constanant the “ED” sounds like “D”


Washed – Wash”D”	Died	Die”D”


For verbs that end in a voiced constanant the “ED” sounds like “T”


Walked – Walk”T”	Stopped – Stopp”T”


For verbs that end in “T” or “D”  the “ED” sounds like “ID”


Started – start”ID”	Decided – Decid”ID”


	attacked	blamed	promised	waited		liked	  	decided	helped	pushed	counted	started	 	watched	lived	avoided	talked		seemed





In England you can get married when you are 16, but you need your parents’ permission until you are 18. In Scotland, however, you can get married at 16 without this. So young English people who want to get married without their parents’ permission often run away (elope) to Scotland. The traditional place for these weddings is Gretna Green, a village just over the Scottish border.











Present continuous
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